
MHCWD – 09-15-2022 Agenda - Page 1 of 3 

admin@mhcwd.org   (530) 878-8096 
16733 Placer Hills Road, PO Box 596, Meadow Vista, CA 95722 

AGENDA 

Regular Board Meeting, September 15, 2022, at 2:00 P.M. 

❖ The following agenda has been prepared and posted at least 72 hours prior 
to the regular board meeting of the Midway Heights County Water District 
Board of Directors in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

❖ The chronological order of agenda items does not necessarily mean that 
each item will be considered in that order.  Any listed items may be 
considered at any time during the meeting, at the discretion of the Board 
President. 

❖ The public may address the Board on each agenda item during the Board's 
consideration of that item. Any members of public present at a meeting will 
be asked but are not required to state their name to the Board Secretary so 
that their attendance may be made a matter of public record.  

❖ The Board is prohibited by law from acting on any matter not appearing on 
the posted agenda, except in certain cases provided for in the Brown Act. 

❖ In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled 
person and you need a disability-related modification or accommodation to 
participate in this meeting, please contact Jason Tiffany at (530) 878-8096 
(phone) or (530) 878-8096 (fax).  Requests must be made as early as 
possible, and at least one full business day before the start of the meeting. 

❖ In accordance with Government Code Sec. 54954.2(a), this notice and 
agenda were posted at the following locations:  MHCWD Office; Meadow 
Vista Post Office; Meadow Vista Village Center; at the intersection of Placer 
Hills and Peaceful Valley Roads; and at the intersection of Oak Hill and 
Hillsdale Roads. 

1



AGENDA 

Regular Board Meeting, September 15, 2022 

MHCWD – 08-18-2022 Agenda - Page 2 of 3 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS

Establish a quorum and identify for the minutes any other persons attending.  Members of 
the public may remain anonymous in the minutes unless they wish to participate in 
the Public Forum, below, or comment on other agenda items.

III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES Pages 4-7

The minutes from the August 18, 2022, Regular Meeting and August 24, 2022 Special
Meeting will be discussed and may be approved.

IV. PUBLIC FORUM

This time is scheduled for comments from members of the public concerning subjects that
do not specifically appear as items elsewhere on the agenda.  The total time allotted for
the public forum session is generally limited to 20 minutes.  Discussion on each particular
issue is limited to 10 minutes.  Individuals are limited to approximately 3 minutes of public
comments.

Potential issues or action items raised during the Public Forum will be noted by the
Secretary and offered for discussion during the Calendar Review later in the session.

V. GENERAL BUSINESS 

A. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Items on the Consent Calendar are routine in nature.  All Calendared Items, if any, are 
accepted/approved by a single vote and without discussion.  Each such item must 
appear as a document included in the Board Packet.  Any Director may move that an 
item be removed from the Calendar for separate discussion and vote.  Members of the 
public may comment on calendared items prior to the vote, even if not removed for 
discussion. 

1. Directors Reports

2. Miscellaneous Information and Correspondence

B. DISCUSSION & ACTION RE:  AGENDA PREPARATION & APPROVAL PROCESS 
Pages 8-9 

Proposed changes to the wording of District Code §§ 2.2.5.1, 2.2.5.4, and 2.2.6 
regarding the respective roles of the President and the Secretary will be considered. 

C. DISCUSSION & ACTION RE:  CONSENT CALENDAR Pages 10-11 

Proposed changes to the wording of District Code § 2.2.7 regarding the Consent 
Calendar will be considered. 

D. DISCUSSION & ACTION RE:  AUTHORIZATION OF LEGAL SERVICES Pages 12-
13  

Proposed changes to the wording of Policies & Procedures § 2.4.A regarding 
authorization to request legal advice or services from District Counsel. 

2



AGENDA 

Regular Board Meeting, September 15, 2022 

MHCWD – 08-18-2022 Agenda - Page 3 of 3 

E. DISCUSSION & ACTION RE:  BOARD VACANCY Pages 14-17 

The full-term seat currently held by Director Rushton will become vacant when his term 
expires late this year.  Because the General Election filing deadline has past, County 
Elections regulations require that the vacancy be filled via appointment by the Board of 
Supervisors rather than the District Board. 

F. FIELD REPORT Page 18 

Review of the Field Report as provided in the Board Packet. 

G. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Review the Report as provided in the Board Packet and/or as delivered by the GM. 

VI. FINANCIAL

A. TREASURER'S REPORT OF ACCOUNT TRANSFERS AND BILLS PAID Pages 19-
24 

Fund Summaries, Transfers and Checking Account Reconciliation Registers showing 
the balances of all the District's funds and bills paid for August 2022 will be discussed 
and possibly approved by the Board. 

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION AND CALENDAR REVIEW

The Board and staff may take this opportunity to ask questions; provide or receive
information; make requests or provide direction regarding subsequent meeting agendas.

Current list of potential agenda items:

1. Format/content of Minutes and policy re: attachment of documents

2. Document Retention Policy

3. Scope of Public Information accessible via the Website

4. Policy re: Directors Who Share a Household

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE & TIME

The next regular meeting will be October 19, 2022, at 2:00 PM, unless otherwise decided
in session,

IX. CLOSED SESSION:  GM ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Public employee performance evaluation involving the General Manager under
Government Code sections 54954.5(e) and 54957.

Directors will meet with the General Manager.  Counsel to be available by phone.  This
Item may be taken up earlier in the session, at the discretion of the Chair.

1. Discussion and Action re: General Manager’s performance since his 2021
evaluation.

2. Return to Open Session.

3. Report of actions taken in Closed Session, if any.

X. ADJOURNMENT 

3



MHCWD–08-18-2022 Minutes – Page 1 of 3 

MIDWAY HEIGHTS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

August 18, 2022, 2:00 P.M. at District Office 
16733 Placer Hills Road, Meadow Vista CA. 95722 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

President Goodwin called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 

II. ROLL CALL

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Richard Goodwin, President  

Pauline Nevins, Vice-President 

Don Rushton, District Treasurer 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: Tom Kane, ACWA/JPIA Representative 

Ronald Tucker, CSDA Representative 

OTHERS PRESENT: Jason Tiffany, General Manager and Board Secretary 

Andrew Ramos, District Counsel 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: None 

III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

M/S Pauline Nevins/Richard Goodwin to accept the July 21, 2022 minutes as written.

IV. PUBLIC FORUM -- None

Richard Goodwin Aye X Nay Abstain Absent 

Pauline Nevins Aye X Nay Abstain Absent 

Don Rushton Aye X Nay Abstain Absent 

Tom Kane Aye Nay Abstain Absent X 

Ronald Tucker Aye Nay Abstain Absent X 

Board Totals: Ayes 3 Nays Abstain Absent 2 

Motion Result: Passed X Failed 

4



MHCWD–08-18-2022 Minutes – Page 2 of 3 

V. GENERAL BUSINESS 

A. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Directors Reports -- None.

2. Miscellaneous Information and Correspondence -- None.

B. DISCUSSION & ACTION RE: STRATEGIC PLANNING PROJECT 

M/S Richard Goodwin/Don Rushton to approve the contract with Hansford Economic 
Consulting, LLC in the amount of $20,000 for support in developing the SPP. 

C. FIELD REPORT 

The Board reviewed the report and asked questions about the listed activities. 

D. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT 

• Reported that he needs shoulder surgery.

• Update the Board on the Hillsdale Irrigation Main Replacement Project.

• Attended a conference call with PCWA. The focus was on increased construction
cost and SB 552.

• Updated the Board on the current election of MHCWD Board members. Three
candidates applied for the four positions open for election during the November
8, 2022 general election.

VI. FINANCIAL

A. TREASURER'S REPORT - APPROVAL OF ACCOUNT TRANSFERS AND BILLS
PAID 

M/S Richard Goodwin/Pauline Nevins to accept the report for August 2022. 

Richard Goodwin Aye X Nay Abstain Absent 

Pauline Nevins Aye X Nay Abstain Absent 

Don Rushton Aye X Nay Abstain Absent 

Tom Kane Aye Nay Abstain Absent X 

Ronald Tucker Aye Nay Abstain Absent X 

Board Totals: Ayes 3 Nays Abstain Absent 2 

Motion Result: Passed X Failed 

Richard Goodwin Aye X Nay Abstain Absent 

Pauline Nevins Aye X Nay Abstain Absent 

Don Rushton Aye X Nay Abstain Absent 

5



MHCWD–08-18-2022 Minutes – Page 3 of 3 

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION AND CALENDAR REVIEW

The Board reviewed the calendar.

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE & TIME

The date is set for September 15, 2022, at 2:00 PM.

IX. CLOSED SESSION:  CONFERENCE WITH DISTRICT COUNSEL

The Board went into closed session at 2:57 PM. The Board came out of closed session at 
5:08 PM. No reportable action other than to continue this item to a Special Meeting to take 
place on August 24, 2022, at the District office at 2 PM.

X. ADJOURNMENT 

President Goodwin adjourned the meeting at 5:10 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, Approved, 

Jason Tiffany  Richard Goodwin 
Secretary to the Board President of the Board 
Midway Heights County Water District 

Dated: 

Midway Heights County Water District 
All Attachments, Ordinances, Resolutions, Policies, etc. are on file with Midway Heights County Water District. 

Copies are available upon request. 

Tom Kane Aye Nay Abstain Absent X 

Ronald Tucker Aye Nay Abstain Absent X 

Board Totals: Ayes 3 Nays Abstain Absent 2 

Motion Result: Passed X Failed 

6



 

MHCWD–08-24-2022 Minutes – Page 1 of 1 
  

MIDWAY HEIGHTS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 
Special Board Meeting Minutes 

 
August 24, 2022, 2:00 P.M. at District Office 

16733 Placer Hills Road, Meadow Vista CA. 95722 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

President Goodwin called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 

II. ROLL CALL   

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Richard Goodwin, President  

 Pauline Nevins, Vice-President 

 Don Rushton, District Treasurer 

 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: Tom Kane, ACWA/JPIA Representative 

 Ronald Tucker, CSDA Representative 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: Jason Tiffany, General Manager and Board Secretary 

 Andrew Ramos, District Counsel 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: None 

  

III. PUBLIC FORUM -- None 

IV. CLOSED SESSION:  CONFERENCE WITH DISTRICT COUNSEL 

The Board went into closed session at 2:08 PM. The Board came out of closed session at 
5:18 PM. No reportable action. 

V. ADJOURNMENT 

President Goodwin adjourned the meeting at 5:20 PM. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,       Approved, 
 
 
             
        
Jason Tiffany       Richard Goodwin 
Secretary to the Board     President of the Board 
Midway Heights County Water District 
 
Dated:     
 

 
Midway Heights County Water District 

All Attachments, Ordinances, Resolutions, Policies, etc. are on file with Midway Heights County Water District. 
Copies are available upon request. 

7



Proposed amendments to Code Sections re: Preparation of  Agendas 

 

 

Section 2.2.5.1. Duties of the President.  

The President shall have the following duties:  

(a) To assure that a written agenda is prepared for each Board meeting while retaining 
the right to approve the Agenda and any related documents prior to publication.  

(b) To preside over at Board meetings and preserve order and decorum.  

(c) To determine questions of order and enforce rules of the Board, subject to appeal 
by the entire Board of Directors.  

(d) To call special meetings.  

(e) To execute all resolutions and contracts of the District.  

(f) To recommend appointments to Board committees, subject to approval by the 
Board of Directors.  

(g) To perform other duties imposed from time to time by the Board of Directors. 

 

Section 2.2.5.4. Duties of the Secretary.  

The Secretary shall have the following duties:  

(a) To prepare and maintain the Board agendas, notices, and minutes.  

(b) To attest to the signature of the President on resolutions, and contracts.  

(c) To certify District documents as true and correct copies.  

(d) To give notice of meetings and hearings as required by law.  

(e) To perform other duties imposed from time to time by the Board of Directors.  

 

Section 2.2.6. Agenda for Board meetings.  

(a) The Secretary shall be responsible for:  

(1) preparing Draft preparation of the regular meeting agenda and any special 
meeting notice/agenda, andincluding the drafting of agenda items and 
related materials as requested by individual board members.  

(2) Setting a deadline for adding items to the agenda of not more than two 
weeks preceding a regular meeting to allow sufficient time to prepare the 
agenda and back-up materials; 

(3) Assuring the agenda specifies the correct time and location of the meeting 
and contains a brief general description of each item of business to be 
transacted or discussed at the meeting.  

(4) Providing adequate time in advance of publication for the President to review 
and approve the agenda and related materials; 

8



Proposed amendments to Code Sections re: Preparation of  Agendas 

 
(5) posting Posting of it the agenda at the Meadow Vista Post Office, the market 

at Village Center, and other locations specified by the Board that are freely 
accessible to the public, at least 72 hours before each regular meeting and 
at least 24 hours before each special meeting;.  

(6) The Delivery of the agenda must be delivered personally, by mail, or by 
electronic mail to each newspaper, radio or television station, any media 
outlet, public entity or person that has requested notice of Board meetings in 
writing;.  

The agenda must specify the time and location of the meeting and contain a brief 
general description (generally no more than 20 words) of each item of 
business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting. Except as otherwise 
directed by the Board of Directors, any member of the board may request the 
Secretary to place an item for discussion or action on the agenda. In order to 
allow sufficient time to prepare the agenda and back-up materials, the 
deadline for adding items to the agenda shall be two weeks preceding the 
regular meeting at 10 A.M.  

 

Subsection (b) and following are unaffected.  

 

9



DRAFT

Proposed amendments to Code Section 2.2.7. 
 

 
Section 2.2.7. Order of Business.  

(a) The President, or the Board by motion, may take any item of business out of order.  

(b) The order of business at a regular Board meeting will ordinarily be as follows:  

(1) Call to order and roll call.  

(2) Approval of minutes, unless placed on the Consent Calendar under subsection (4).  

(3) Public forum, opportunity for public comment on non-agenda items.  

The agenda for every regular meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of 
the public to directly address the Board on items of interest that are within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the Board, and which do not appear on the agenda.  

No person shall address the Board without first being recognized by the President.  

No action shall be taken on any item not on the agenda unless otherwise authorized 
by CA Government Code Section 54954.2 and or District Code Section 2.2.6(c). 
However, the Board may briefly respond, request staff to report back on the matter, 
or direct staff to place the matter on a subsequent agenda.  As a general Board 
policy, complaints and concerns from members of the public should first be referred 
to the General Manager for investigation and resolution, if appropriate.   

The following procedures shall govern the public’s exercise of this their right to be 
heard:  

(i) Speakers must state their name and address for the record.  

(ii) The Board Chair may limit the public forum session in order to facilitate the 
meeting.  The total time allotted for the public forum session is generally limited 
to 20 minutes. Discussion on each particular issue is limited to 10 minutes. 
Individuals are limited to approximately 3 minutes of public comments. The time 
to address the Board will be allocated on a basis of the order of requests 
received. Not all members of the public may be allowed to speak if the total 
time allocated expires.  

(iii) If action is necessary on any public comment, a member of the Board may 
request that the item be placed on the agenda for the next meeting.  

(4) Consent Calendar.  

Matters of a routine, non-controversial nature which require no further discussion may 
be listed in a section of the regular agenda as an item of the “Consent Calendar.”  

The following rules shall govern the use of the Consent Calendar:  

(i) Each item on the Consent Calendar must appear as a document included with 
the agenda (i.e., part of the Board Packet.)  

(ii) Consent Calendar items may include approval of the meeting minutes, new and 
unfinished business action items, Director and staff reports and Board/staff 
general discussion, financial reports and fiscal action items, or any other matters 

10



DRAFT

Proposed amendments to Code Section 2.2.7. 
 

involving routine District business, and for which the law does not require a 
public hearing.  

(i)(iii) All items listed under the Consent Calendar will be enacted by one motion 
of the Board.  

(ii)(iv) The Board shall allow an opportunity for public comment on the Consent 
Calendar matters before any vote to approve it.  

(iii)(i) Consent Calendar items may include approval of the meeting minutes, 
new and unfinished business action items, Director and staff reports and 
Board/staff general discussion, financial reports and fiscal action items, or any 
other matters involving routine District business, and for which the law does not 
require a public hearing.  

(iv)(v) At any time before Board approval of the Consent Calendar, any member 
of the Board may move that a Consent Calendar matter be removed from the 
Consent Calendar, to be taken up for consideration separately from the 
remaining Consent Calendar items.  

 

11



Proposed amendments to P&P Section 2.4.A 

P&P/2.4.A. AUTHORIZATION OF LEGAL SERVICES Page 1 of 2 
Approved 9/11/97 

MIDWAY  HEIGHTS  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT 

POLICIES  AND  PROCEDURES 

AUTHORIZATION  OF  LEGAL  SERVICES 

In order to control legal expenses incurred by the District, the General Manager 

is the only District representative authorized by the Board of Directors to contact 

the District lawyer without prior approval on a point by point basis.  Such 

authorization is limited to requests for legal advise required for District 

administration and operations, as well as matters related to the functioning of the 

Board of Directors, and is subject to the availability of funds allocated in the 

approved operations budget. 

All other requests for legal advise or services that are to be paid for by the 

District must be pre-authorized by, or under the direction of, the Board of 

Directors. 

No individual Director is authorized to contact the District lawyer or request a 

legal opinion without prior concurrence by the Board. 

1. The Board President is authorized, without prior Board action, to consult with

District Counsel on any and all matters related to the functioning of the 

District. 

2. The General Manager is authorized, without prior approval, to contact District

Counsel on matters related to District operations, administration, personnel, 

and contracts.  

3. All requests for legal advice or services, other than those initiated by the

President or the General Manager, must be authorized in advance by noticed 

action of the Board of Directors. 

4. No individual Director other than the President is authorized to contact District

Counsel or request a legal opinion without prior approval by the Board. 

Individual Directors are not restricted in any way from interacting with District 

Counsel if such contact is initiated by Counsel. 

12



Proposed amendments to P&P Section 2.4.A 

P&P/2.4.A. AUTHORIZATION OF LEGAL SERVICES Page 2 of 2
Approved 9/11/97 

5. Delegation of President’s Authority.  The Chair of an Ad-Hoc Committee may

seek legal advice within the scope and term of the Committee’s mandate 

provided that permission to do so has been explicitly included in the signed 

Scope Statement under which the Committee is operating. 

6. Whenever the District Lawyer renders a formal opinion or other work product,

the authoring attorney shall ordinarily be present or available by remote 

communication to answer questions during the Board session in which the 

delivered opinion or work product is to be considered.  The President may 

waive this requirement by providing noticed justification in the related Board 

Packet. 

7. All unauthorized legal expenses incurred by Directors, the public, or

unauthorized staff are the responsibility of the individual(s) seeking the service. 

13



14



15



16



17



MHCWD             09/15/22 
MEMO              BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM F 
 

MHCWD 
 

Monthly Field Report 

September for the month of August 2022 

 

FLOW  RECORDS 

 

Treated Water: 525,254 cubic feet (3.93 million gallons) purchased, for an average 

service connection usage of 293 gallons per day (based on 447 active service 

connections).   

 

Irrigation Water: 40.0 million gallons (80 Miner's Inches per day) purchased from 

PCWA, with an estimated demand of 40.4 million gallons (81 Miner's Inches per day) 

and an estimated usage of 3,681 gallons per day per customer (based on 354 active 

service connections: 174 metered, 180 flat rate). Reservoir level decreased by 0.35 

million gallons.  

 

FIELD  ACTIVITIES 

 

Service Calls: 46. 

 

After Hours Calls:                        1.  

  

Line/System Repairs: 3. 

 

Service Disconnections: 0. 

 

New Service Connections: 0. 

                

Installations:                                 0. 

   

Double Check Valves Tested: 39. 

 

Underground service alerts 107. 

      

Miscellaneous:   Monthly Bac-T samples, bi monthly meter reading, 

extra irr intake screen cleaning, check valve testing, multiple final reads (customers 

moving), trt flushing, irr flushing, trt valve turning, irr valve turning, easement clearing, 

repairs, and maintenance at all facilities. Regular vehicle maintenance. 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24


	Agenda 2022-09-15 Draft v2
	Minutes 2022-08-18
	Minutes 2022-08-24
	Draft rev Code 2.2.5.1, 2.2.5.4 and 2.2.6
	Draft rev Code 2.2.7
	Draft rev P&P 2.4.A Legal Services
	resumes for 2022-09_Redacted
	Monthly Field Reports 2022-09
	2022-09



